
         

 

 

PAL-MAR 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 

 

 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 4, 2024 
9:30 A.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.palmarwcd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

PAL MAR WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 
Martin County Commission Chambers’ Administrative Center 

2401 SE Monterey Road 
Stuart, Florida 34996 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
April 4, 2024 

9:30 a.m. 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication.............................................................................................................................Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions, Deletions, or Modifications to Agenda 

E. Approval of Minutes 

1. March 7, 2024 Regular Board Meeting…………………………………………………….........Page 4 

F. Old Business 

G. New Business 

1. Discussion on Adopting New Policies and Procedures for the Pal-Mar WCD…………………Page 8 

2. Discussion Regarding District Maps for District Website………………………………………Page 22 

3. Discussion Regarding Off Duty Detail at Pal-Mar WCD 

H. Status Report 

1. Legal – Status Report 

a. Discussion Regarding Required Ethics Training…………………………………………….Page 25 

2. Engineer – Status Report 

3. District Manager - Status Report 

4. Field Maintenance – Status Report 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Financial Report………………………………………………………………………………….Page 26 

2. Consider Invoices………………………………………………………………………………...Page 27 

J. Landowner Items 

K. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

L. Board Member Comments 

M. Adjourn 



Page 1



Page 2



Page 3



PAL MAR WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

March 7, 2024 

 1

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Andrew Karmeris called the March 7, 2024, Regular Board Meeting of 
the Pal Mar Water Control District to order at 9:35 a.m. in the Martin County 
Commission Chambers, 2401 SE Monterey Road, Stuart, Florida 34996.  
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
District Manager Andrew Karmeris offered Proof of Publication which showed that 
notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in The Palm Beach Post and in 
The Stuart News on 9/25/2023, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH QUORUM 

 
A quorum was established with the following attendees: 
 
Commissioner Maria Marino Absent 
Commissioner Sarah Heard Present 
George Stokus Present 
Kevin Cutting Present 
Lewis Lolmaugh Present 
 
Also, in attendance were staff members:  
  
District Manager Andrew Karmeris Special District Services, Inc 
General Counsel Ruth Holmes Torcivia, Donlon, Goddeau & Rubin, P.A.  
District Engineer Bob Higgins Higgins Engineering 
TJ Mansell TJ Mansell Land Management 
 
Also, in attendance were several landowners and members of the public.  
 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda.  
 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 1.  February 1, 2024, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The February 1, 2024, Regular Board Meeting minutes were approved as presented on a 
motion made by Commissioner Heard, seconded by Mr. Stokus. The motion carried 4-
0. 

Page 4



PAL MAR WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

March 7, 2024 

 2

 
F. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no old business items to come before the board.  
 
G. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. Discussion on Adopting New Policies and Procedures for the Pal-Mar 

WCD 
 
Ms. Holmes provided a handout of draft policies and procedures for discussion.  She 
explained the history of Pal-Mar’s policies and procedures and fielded questions from the 
board.  The board asked her to send an electronic copy of the handout to each board 
member.  Commissioner Heard added that she believed steps needed to be taken to 
enforce the protection of district assets on site in Pal-Mar.  She recommended full time 
law or code enforcement be considered.   
 

2. Consider Approval of RFQ Criteria and Authorization to Issue RFQ for 
Engineering Survey Service 

 
Mr. Higgins presented this item.  Mr. Karmeris added that the expectation would be to 
receive qualification submittals during the next 45 days and to bring the results to the 
May board meeting for board discussion and approval.  The board also asked to remove 
three of the bullet point items in the RFQ.  
 
The RFQ Criteria and Authorization to Issue RFQ for Engineering Survey Service was 
approved as amended on a motion made by Commissioner Heard, seconded by Mr. 
Cutting. The motion carried 4-0. 

 
 
H. STATUS REPORTS 
 

1. Legal – Status Report 
 

District attorney Ruth Holmes stated that she had nothing further to report.   
 

2. Engineer – Status Report 
 

Mr. Cutting stated that having maps on the website showing the district may be helpful 
for the public.  Commissioner Heard asked that discussion regarding maps be on the 
agenda for the next meeting and the board agreed.    
 

3. District Manager Report 

Page 5



PAL MAR WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

March 7, 2024 

 3

 
Mr. Karmeris discussed moving the June meeting date from the 6th to the 17th.   
 
The June 6th meeting date was moved to June 17th at the Blake Library on a motion made 
by Commissioner Heard, seconded by Mr. Lolmaugh. The motion carried 4-0. 
 

4. Field Maintenance Report 
 

Mr. Mansell showed the Board some pictures taken in Pal-Mar WCD. He was 
specifically bringing to the Board’s attention a vehicle that had been abandoned and 
vandalized. Mr. Stokus asked for copies of the photos.   

 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

1. Financial Report 
 
Mr. Karmeris pointed out the financial report in the Board book. There was no action 
required.  
 

2. Consider Invoices 
 
Mr. Karmeris presented the invoices in the book. The invoices were then approved, as 
presented, on a motion made by Commissioner Heard, seconded by Mr. Lolmaugh, and 
the motion carried 4-0. 
 
J. LANDOWNER ITEMS 
 
There were no comments from landowners.  
 
K. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Linda Smith from Jupiter, Florida had a comment about the car abandoned in Pal-Mar 
and suggested doubling penalties for violations.  She also suggested more signage to 
better inform the public and recommended sweetening the deal for land swaps to 
encourage swaps to occur.  
 
L. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Cutting suggested adding either MCSO, FWC or another entity have a representative 
present at the next board meeting to discuss off duty details on site at Pal-Mar.  The board 
agreed.  
 
M. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 6



PAL MAR WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

March 7, 2024 

 4

 
There being no further business to come before the Board, at 10:35 am the meeting was 
adjourned on a motion made by Mr. Cutting, seconded by Commissioner Heard, and the 
motion carried 4-0. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 7



POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL  

OF THE  

PAL-MAR WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors on __________________, 2024 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________       ______________________________________ 

Secretary            Chairperson 

 

Page 8



 

2 
 

 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

1.0 General  

2.0 Board of Supervisor Terms, Duties, Meetings, Quorums and Voting  

3.0 District Manager Duties; District Offices  

4.0 Contracts; Agendas; and Agenda Requests 

5.0 Board Authorizations; Conduct of Meetings; Public Comment; Emergency    
 Meetings  

6.0 Payment and Performance Bonds   

7.0 Maintenance Services and Emergency Purchases 

8.0 Landowner Election Procedures  

9.0 Effective Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9



 

3 
 

Section 1.0 General. 
 

(1) The P a l - M a r  W a t e r  C o n t r o l  (the “District”) is an independent 
special district governed by Chapter 189, Florida Statutes. The District was 
created as a water control district pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 298, 
Florida Statutes, and 2005-307, Laws of Florida, and was established to provide 
for the reclaiming and protecting the lands hereinafter described from the effects 
of water by drainage or otherwise, for sanitary and agricultural purposes, to be 
conducive to the public health, convenience, and welfare of public utility and 
benefit, and that such purposes will be effected by the drainage of said lands 
within its jurisdiction. The purpose of these rules (the “Rules”) is to describe the 
general operations of the District’s business. 

 
(2) Definitions located within any section of these Rules shall be applicable within 

all other sections, unless specifically stated to the contrary. 
 

(3) Unless specifically permitted by a written agreement with the District, the District 
accepts documents filed (or submitted) by electronic mail or in person. In person 
submissions are only accepted during normal business hours. Electronic 
submissions sent after 5:00 p.m. will be deemed received by the District the 
follow business day. 

 

Section 2.0 Board of Supervisor Terms, Duties, Meetings, Quorums and Voting. 
 

(1) Board of Supervisors. The Board of Supervisors of the District (the “Board”) shall 
consist of five (5) members as specified by Chapter 2005-307, Laws of Florida.  

 
(a) Supervisors shall hold office for terms specified by S e c t i o n  
2 9 8 . 1 2 ,  F l o r i d a  S t a t u t e s  a n d  Chapter 2005-307-Laws of 
Florida. If, during the term of office, any Board member(s) vacates their office, 
the remaining member(s) of the Board shall vote to fill the vacancies by 
appointment until the next annual meeting. If three or more vacancies exist at 
the same time, a quorum shall not be required to appoint replacement Board 
members. 

 
(b) The presence of three (3) Supervisors shall constitute a quorum for the 

purposes of  conducting  business,  exercising  powers  and  all  other  
purposes. A Supervisor shall be counted toward the quorum if physically 
present at the meeting, regardless of whether such Supervisor is prohibited 
from, or abstains from, participating in discussion or voting on a particular 
item. 

 
(c) Action taken by the Board shall be upon a majority vote of the 

Supervisors present,  unless  otherwise  required  by  law.  
 

(d) Unless otherwise provided for by an act of the Board, t h e  

Page 10



 

4 
 

C h a i r p e r s o n  o r  V i c e - C h a i r p e r s o n ,  a s  d e c i d e d  b y  
t h e  f u l l  B o a r d ,  may attend a mediation session on behalf of the 
Board.  

 
(2) Officers. At the first Board meeting held after each election where the newly 

elected members take office, the Board shall select a Chairperson and Vice- 
Chairperson. 

 
 (a)      The Chairperson must be a member of the Board.   If the Chairperson 

resigns from that office or ceases to be a member of the Board, the Board shall 
select a Chairperson.  The Chairperson serves at the pleasure of the Board.  
The Chairperson shall be authorized to execute resolutions and contracts on 
the District’s behalf.  The Chairperson shall convene and conduct all meetings 
of the Board.  In the event the Chairperson is unable to attend a meeting, the 
Vice-Chairperson shall convene and conduct the meeting.   The Chairperson 
or Vice-Chairperson may delegate the responsibility  of  conducting  the  
meeting  to  the  District’s  manager (“District Manager”) or District Counsel, 
in whole or in part. 

 
(b) The Vice-Chairperson shall be a member of the Board and shall have such 

duties and responsibilities as specifically designated by the Board from time  
to  time.     The  Vice-Chairperson  has  the  authority  to  execute resolutions 
and contracts on the District’s behalf in the absence of the Chairperson.   

 
(c) The Board may assign additional duties to District officers from time to 

time, which include, but are not limited to, executing documents on behalf of 
the District. 

 
(d) The C h a i r p e r s o n  may sign checks for the District.  

 
(3) Committees.  The  Board  may  establish  committees  of  the  Board,  either  on  a 

permanent or temporary basis, to perform specifically designated functions. 
Committees may include individuals who are not members of the Board.   

 
(4) Meetings. All meetings of the Board and Committees serving an advisory function 

shall be open to the public in accord with the provisions of Chapter 286 of the Florida 
Statutes, except those meetings statutorily exempt. 

  
 (a) Participation by Teleconference/Videoconference.   Supervisors may participate 

in Board meetings by teleconference or videoconference if in the good judgment of 
the Board extraordinary circumstances exist; provided however, at least three Board 
members must be physically present at the meeting location to establish a quorum.  
District staff may participate in Board meetings by teleconference or 
videoconference. 

 
 (b) Remote Voting.  A Supervisor participating in the Board meeting by 

teleconference or videoconference shall be entitled to vote and take all other action as 

Page 11



 

5 
 

though physically present. 
 

(5) Minutes. Minutes of a meeting shall be corrected and approved by the Board  at the 
following  subsequent  meeting. 

     
(6) Voting Conflict of Interest.  The Board shall comply with Section 112.3143 of the 

Florida Statutes, so as to ensure the proper disclosure of conflicts of interest on matters 
coming before the Board for a vote.  For the purposes of this section, "voting conflict 
of interest" shall be governed by Chapter 112, Florida Statutes as  amended  from  
time  to  time. Generally, a voting conflict exists when a Board member is called 
upon to vote on an item which would inure to the Board member’s special private 
gain or loss or the Board member knows would inure to the special private gain or 
loss of the Board member’s a business associate, or a relative including only a father, 
mother, son, daughter, husband, wife, brother, sister, father-in-law, mother-in-law, 
son-in-law, and daughter-in-law. 

 
(a) When a Board member knows the member has a conflict of interest on a 

matter coming before the Board, the member should notify the Board’s 
Secretary and District Counsel prior to participating in any discussion with the 
Board on the matter.  The member shall publicly announce the conflict of 
interest at the meeting.  This announcement shall appear in the minutes. If the 
Board member has a conflict of interest, the Board member must abstain from 
voting on the matter at issue.   

 
(b) It is not a conflict of interest for a Supervisor, the District Manager, 

contractor, or an employee of the District to be a stockholder, officer or 
employee of a landowner, landowner, or of an entity affiliated with a 
landowner so long as such affiliation is annually disclosed to the Board. 

 
(7)   Policies.  The Board may adopt policies related to the conduct of its business and 

the provision of services either by resolution or motion. 
 

Section 3.0 District Manager Duties; District Offices 

 

              (1)     Secretary/Treasurer.  The District Manager serves as Secretary and Treasurer 
and shall be responsible for preparing and maintaining the Board’s Minutes of 
each Board meeting and may have other duties assigned by the Board from time 
to time.  The Secretary/Treasurer shall be bonded by a reputable and qualified 
bonding company in at least the amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000), or 
have in place a fidelity bond, employee theft insurance policy, or a comparable 
product in the amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000) that names the 
District as an additional insured. 

 
   (2)    Record of Proceedings. The Board shall keep a permanent record book entitled 

“Record of     Proceedings,” in which shall be recorded minutes of all meetings, 
resolutions, proceedings, certificates, and corporate acts.  The Records of 

Page 12



 

6 
 

Proceedings shall be located at a District office and shall be available for inspection 
by the public.  The District Manager shall be responsible for maintaining the 
Record of Proceedings. 

 
  (3)    Signing Checks. The District Manager may sign checks for the District. See also, 

Section 2.0.  
 
  (4) District Offices.  Unless otherwise designated by the Board, the official District 

office shall be the District Manager’s office identified by the District Manager.  
The District Manager’s office must retain, at a minimum, but not be limited to, the 
following documents: 
 
(a) Agenda packages for prior 24 months and next meeting; 
(b)  Official minutes of meetings, including adopted resolutions of the 
 Board;  
(c) Names and addresses of current Supervisors and District Manager,             
 unless such addresses are protected from disclosure by law;  
(d) Adopted engineer’s reports; 
(e) Adopted assessments and reports;  
(f)  Adopted disclosure of public financing; 
(g) Proceedings, certificates, bonds given by all employees, and any and 
 all corporate acts; 
(h) District policies and  rules; 
(i)  Fiscal year end audits;  
(j) Adopted budget for the current fiscal year; and 
(k) A copy of all contracts. 
 

(5) Document Retention.  The District Manager shall ensure that each District 
 records office contains the documents required by and in compliance with 
 Florida law. 

 
  (6)     Agenda. The District Manager, under the guidance of District Counsel and the 

Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson, shall prepare a notice and an agenda of the 
meeting/hearing/workshop.  The District Manager shall be responsible for creating 
and publishing the agenda on the District website and ensuring a reasonable 
number of hardcopy agendas are available at each public meeting. 

 
 (7)  Website.  The District Manager shall be responsible for maintenance of the 

District’s website to ensure the website contains information as directed by the 
Board and required by Florida law.  

 
 (8)  Publication of Notices.  The District Manager shall be responsible for publishing 

all official Notices, as required by Florida law. 
 
 (9)  The  Secretary  may  work  with  the Dsitrict’s contractors or District 

Counsel in preparing draft minutes for the Board’s consideration. 

Page 13



 

7 
 

 
 

Section 4.0 Contracts; Agenda and Agenda Requests. 
 

(1)      Service Contracts.   Any contract for services, regardless of cost, shall include 
provisions required by law that require the contractor to comply with public 
records laws.  The District Manager shall be responsible for initially enforcing all 
contract provisions related to a contractor’s duty to comply with public records 
laws.  

 
      (a)    The Chairperson, or the Vice-Chairperson in the absence of the Chairperson, 

          is the authorized official to sign all Service Contracts.   
 
 

(2)      Agenda. The notice and Agenda shall be available to the public and posted on the 
District’s website at least seventy-two (72) hours before the 
meeting/hearing/workshop except in an emergency.  For good cause, the agenda 
may be changed after it is first made available for distribution.   The requirement 
of good cause shall be liberally construed to allow the District to efficiently 
conduct business and to avoid the expenses associated with special meetings. 

 
The District may, but is not required to, use the following format in preparing its 
Agenda for its regular meetings: 

 
 Call to order 
 Roll call 
 Public comment  
 Organizational matters and review of minutes 
 Specific items of old business Specific items of new business  
 Staff reports 

(a) District Counsel  
(b) District Engineer  
(c) District Manager 

1.  Financial Report 
2.  Approval of Expenditures 

(d)  Maintenance Supervisor Supervisor’s requests and comments  
 Public comment 
 Adjournment 

 
(3) Requests for Agenda Items.    
 
 (a)   Persons wishing to request an agenda item for the Board’s consideration 

at an upcoming meeting must submit the requested agenda item to the District 
Manager via email with a copy to the District Counsel. The District Manager must 
submit the requested item to the Chairperson for review at the earliest practicable 
time. The Chairperson must approve or deny the inclusion of the requested item on 

Page 14



 

8 
 

an upcoming agenda. All requested agenda items are subject to the same time 
frames as any other usual agenda item. Such  pe r son  submi t t i ng  a  speci a l  
reque s t ,  mus t  furnish his or her name, the business interest affected by the 
request, an email and physical mailing address. 

 
 (b) During Supervisor comments at a regular scheduled meeting, Supervisors 

may request an item to be placed on any upcoming meeting agenda. Any Supervisor 
may raise discussion about any issue during his or her Supervisor comment.  The 
Board may, but is not required to, vote on issues raised during Supervisor 
comments. 

 
 (c) After an agenda has been made available, a change may be made if 

authorized by the Chairperson and only upon a showing of good cause. Notification 
of such change shall be stated in the record.  

 
Section 5.0   Board Authorizations; Conduct of Meetings; Public Comment; Emergency 

   Meetings 
 

(1)    Board Authorization.  For each agenda item, there shall be discussion permitted 
among the Board members during the meeting.  Approval or disapproval of 
resolutions and other proposed Board actions shall be in the form of a motion by 
one Board member, a second by another Board member, and an affirmative vote 
by the majority of the Board members present.  Any Board member, including 
the Chairperson, can make or second a motion. 

 
(2)    Continuances. Any meeting or public hearing of the Board may be continued 

without re-notice or re-advertising provided that: 
 

(a) The Board identifies on the record at the original meeting a reasonable 
need for a continuance; 

 
(b) The continuance i s  to a  specified  date,  time,  and  location  publicly 

announced at the original meeting; and 
 

(c) The public notice for the original meeting states that the meeting may be 
continued to a date and time and states that the date, time, and location of any 
continuance shall be publicly announced at the original meeting and posted at 
the District Office immediately following the original meeting. 

 
 (3) Attorney-Client Sessions.   An Attorney-Client Session is permitted when the 

District’s attorneys deem it necessary to meet in private with the Board to discuss 
pending litigation to which the District is a party before a court or administrative 
agency or as may be authorized by law.   The District’s attorneys must request 
such session at a public meeting.  Prior to holding the Attorney-Client Session, 
the District must give reasonable public notice of the time and date of the session 
and the names of the persons anticipated to attend the session.  The session must 

Page 15



 

9 
 

commence at an open meeting in which the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson 
announces the commencement of the session, the estimated length of the session, 
and the names of the persons who will be attending the session.  The discussion 
during the session is confined to settlement negotiations or strategy related to 
litigation expenses or as may be authorized by law.  Only the Board, the District’s 
attorneys (including outside counsel), the District Manager, and the court reporter 
may attend an Attorney-Client Session.   During the session, no votes may be 
taken and no final decisions concerning settlement can be made.   Upon the 
conclusion of the session, the public meeting is reopened and the Chairperson or 
Vice-Chairperson must announce that the session has concluded.   The session 
must be transcribed by a court-reporter and the transcript of the session filed with 
the District Secretary within a reasonable time after the session.  The transcript 
shall not be available for public inspection until after the conclusion of the 
litigation. 

 
(4) Emergency Meetings. The Chairperson, or Vice-Chairperson if the Chairperson is 

unavailable,  may  convene  an  emergency  meeting  of  the  Board  without  first 
having complied with sections (1) and (3) of this Rule, to act on emergency matters 
that may affect the public health, safety, or welfare.  Whenever possible, the 
District Manager shall make reasonable efforts to provide public notice and notify 
all Board members of an emergency meeting twenty-four (24) hours in advance.    

 
(5) Public Comment. The Board shall set aside a reasonable amount of time at each 

meeting for public comment and members of the public shall be permitted to 
provide  comment  on  any  proposition  before  the  Board.    Each member of the 
public shall be granted three (3) minutes to speak. The Chairperson shall have the 
discretion to increase or reduce the speaking time limes as may be necessary. 

 
Section 6.0 Payment and Performance Bonds. 

 
(1) Scope.    This  section shall  apply  to  contracts  for  the  construction  of  a  

Work of the District, or for repairs upon a Work of the District. 
 

(2) Required Bond.  Upon entering into a contract for any of the construction services 
Rule in excess of $200,000, the Board should require that the contractor, before 
commencing the work, execute and record a payment and performance bond in 
an amount equal to the contract price.  Notwithstanding the terms of the contract 
or any other law, the District may not make payment to the contractor until the 
contractor has provided to the District a certified copy of the recorded bond. 

 
(3) Discretionary Bond.  At the discretion of the Board, upon entering into a contract 

for any of the services described in section (1) of this section for an amount not 
exceeding $200,000, the contractor may be exempted from executing a payment 
and performance bond. 

 
 

Page 16



 

10 
 

Section 7.0 Maintenance Services and Emergency Purchases. 
 

(1)  Scope.  All contracts for maintenance of any Work of the District or project 
authorized under Chapter 298, Florida Statutes, or Chapter 2005-307, Laws of 
Florida.  

 
(2) Procedure.  When a purchase of maintenance services is within the scope of 
 this section, the following procedures shall apply: 

 
(a)      The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request 
  for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation as 
  determined appropriate by the Board upon consultation with the District 
  Engineer, District Counsel and District Manager. 

 
(b) Notice of the Invitation to Bid,  Request  for  Proposals,  Invitation  to 

Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised in accordance 
with applicable Florida law.  The notice shall allow at least seven (7) days 
for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses. 

 
(c) If the District has pre-qualified suppliers of maintenance services, then, 

at the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-
qualified will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, and responses. 

 
(d) In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm 

or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or 
responses: 

 
(i) Hold the required applicable state professional licenses in good 

standing, if any; 
 

(ii) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if 
any; 

      (iii)   Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized                                
to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 of 
the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation; and 

 
(iv) Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the Invitation 

to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive 
Solicitation. 

 
Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid, 
proposal, reply, or response if required by the District.  Failure to submit 
evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the 
bid, proposal, reply, or response. 

 
   (e) The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or    

Page 17



 

11 
 

responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the purchase, 
if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is determined to be 
in the best interest of the District.  No Vendor shall be entitled  to  recover  
any  costs  of  bid,  proposal,  reply,  or  response preparation or submittal 
from the District. 

 
(f) The  Board  may  require  bidders  and  proposers  to  furnish  bid  bonds, 

performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be 
approved by the Board. 

 
(g) If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses 

are received, the District may purchase the maintenance services or may 
reject the   bids, proposals, replies, or responses for al ack of 
competitiveness. If no Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response is 
received, the District may take whatever steps reasonably necessary in order 
to proceed with the procurement of maintenance services, which steps 
may include a direct purchase of the maintenance services without further 
competitive selection processes. 

 
(3) Exemptions.  Maintenance services that are only available from a single source 

are exempt from this Rule.  Maintenance services provided by governmental 
agencies are exempt from this Rule.   A contract for maintenance services 
is exempt from this Rule if state or federal law prescribes with whom the District 
must contract or if the rate of payment is established during the appropriation 
process. 

 
(4) Renewal.  Contracts for the purchase of maintenance services subject to this Rule 

may be renewed for a period that may not exceed five (5) years or the term of the 
original contract, whichever period is longer. 

 
(5) Contracts; Public Records.  In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered 

into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the 
contractor to comply with public records laws. 

 
(6) Emergency Purchases.  The District may make an Emergency Purchase without 

complying with these rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or 
is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting.   

 
Section 8.0 Landowner Election Procedures 
 
     (1)    Landowners' Meeting 

In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 2005-307, Laws of Florida, and 
applicable provisions of Chapter 298, it is required that an annual meeting of the 
Landowners of the District be held in June of each year for the purpose of electing 
Supervisors and hearing reports of the Board of Supervisors. The assembled 

Page 18



 

12 
 

Landowners shall organize by electing a Chairperson, who shall preside over the 
meeting with the Secretary of the Board of Supervisors for recording purposes. 

   (2)       Establishment  of Quorum 

Any Landowner(s) present or voting by proxy shall constitute a quorum at the 
meeting of the Landowners. 

 

 (3)       Voting 

Each Landowner shall be entitled to cast one vote for each acre, or any fraction 
thereof, of land owned by him or her in the District, for each open position on the 
Board. (For example, if there are three positions open, an owner of one acre or less  
may cast one vote for each of the three positions. An owner of two acres may cast 
two votes for each of the three positions.) Each Landowner shall be entitled to vote 
either in person or by a representative present with a lawful written proxy. 

 (4)      Registration for Casting Ballots 

The registration process for the casting of ballots by Landowners or their 
representatives holding their proxies shall be as follows: 

(a)   At the Landowners ' Meeting and prior to the commencement of the first 
casting of ballots for a Board of Supervisor position, each Landowner, or their 
representative if proxies are being submitted in lieu thereof, shall be directed to 
register their attendance and the total number of votes by acreage to which each 
claims to be entitled,  with the elected Secretary of the meeting or the District's 
Manager. 

(b)   At such registration, each Landowner, or their representative with a lawful 
proxy, shall be provided a numbered ballot for the Board of Supervisor 
position(s) open for election.   A District representative will mark on the ballot 
the number of votes that such Landowner, or their representative, is registered 
to cast for each Board of Supervisor position open for election. 

c)   All Landowner proxies shall be collected at the time of registration and 
retained with the Official Records of the District for subsequent certification or 
verification, if required. 

               (5)        Nomination of Candidates 

At the meeting, the Chairperson shall call for nominations from the floor for 
Candidates for the open seats on the Board of Supervisors. When there are no 
further nominations, the Chairperson shall close the floor for nominations. The 

Page 19



 

13 
 

names of each Candidate and the spelling of their names shall be announced. 
Nominees need not be present to be nominated.  After the nominations are 
received and the floor closed for nominations, the Chair shall ask if the persons 
nominated accept the nomination (this will ensure those nominated for 
Supervisor wish to serve). 

 (6)        Casting of Ballots 

Registration and the issuance of  ballots shall cease once  the Chairperson calls 
for the commencement of the casting of ballots for the election of a Board of 
Supervisor and thereafter no additional ballots shall be issued. 

The Chairperson will declare that the Landowners, or their representatives,  be 
requested to cast their ballots for the Board of Supervisor(s).   Once the ballots 
have been cast, the Chairperson will call for a collection of the ballots. 

 (7)            Counting of Ballots and Seating of Supervisors  

(a) Following the collection of ballots, the Secretary or District Manager shall 
be responsible for the tabulation of ballots in order to determine the total number 
of votes cast for each candidate that is seeking election to that particular open 
position and for determination of the number of votes case for each candidate 
for such position. 

(b) The candidate receiving the highest number of votes for the particular Board 
of Supervisor position for which said votes were cast shall be declared be the 
Chairperson as elected for such Board of Supervisor position following the 
Secretary’s submission of the tabulation for that election. 

(c) The process shall be repeated for each Board of Supervisor position open 
for election until counting of ballots has been conducted for all such positions. 

(d) Following the election and announcement of the votes, the Chairperson 
shall ask the Landowners present, or those representatives holding proxies for 
Landowners, whether they wish to contest the election results.  If no contests are 
received, said election results shall thereupon be certified and each newly elected 
Supervisor will thereupon take the Oath of Office and be seated as a member of 
the District’s Board of Supervisors. 
 

(8)       Contesting of Election Results 

If there is a contest, the contest must be addressed to the Chairperson and 
thereupon the individual casting a ballot that is being contested will be required 
to provide proof of ownership of the acreage for which they voted at the election 

Page 20



 

14 
 

within five (5) business days of the Landowners' Meeting. The proof of 
ownership shall be submitted to the District Manager who will thereupon consult 
with the District's General Counsel and together they will review the material 
provided and will determine the legality of the contested ballot(s). Once the 
contests are resolved, the Chairperson shall reconvene the Landowners' Meeting 
and thereupon certify the election results. 

      (9)       Recessing of Annual Landowners ' Meeting 

In the event there is a contest of a ballot or of the election,  the Landowners '   
Meeting shall be recessed to a future time, date and location, at which time the 
election findings on the contest shall be reported in accordance with the 
procedure above and the newly elected Supervisor(s) shall thereupon take their 
Oath of Office. 

(10)          Proxy Provisions 

(a)   Each Landowner shall only be entitled to vote in person or by means of a 
representative attending in person and holding a lawful written proxy in order to 
cast said Landowner ' s votes. 

(b)   Proxies  will not require that proof of acreage ownership be attached.  
Rather, proof of ownership and the owner’s voting consent to the proxy holder 
must be provided timely by the holder of the proxy, if the proxy is contested in 
accordance with the procedure above. 

 
Section 9.0 Effective Date. 

 
 

 These Policies and Procedures shall be effective ___                        , 2024.  

 

Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



The Oaks Center · 2501A Burns Road · Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410-5204                o: 561.630.4922 · f: 561.630.4923 · www.sdsinc.org 
Additional Offices: Miami · Bonita Springs · Tradition · West Villages · Ave Maria  

 

 

 

Ethics Training  
 
Beginning in 2024, District Supervisors are required to complete four (4) hours of ethics 
training annually.  Below are links to two training sessions that will, upon completion, 
satisfy the training requirement.  Beginning with the 2024 Form 1, District Supervisors 
will be required to confirm that they have completed the training each year.   
 

 State Ethics Laws for Constitutional Officers & Elected Municipal Officers 
o https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=U8JktIMKzyI 

 Public Meetings and Public Records Law 
o https://www.myfloridalegal.com/sites/default/files/Full%2520audio%25

202018%5B2%5D.mp3 
 
Both links can be found on SDS’ website, at www.sdsinc.org/links.   
 
 
The Florida Association of Special Districts (FASD) also offers a training option through 
Florida State University’s Florida Institute of Government.  If your special district is a 
member of FASD, the cost for this special district-specific ethics training is $49.00 for 
each district official. 
 
If your special district is NOT a member of FASD, the cost for this special district-specific 
ethics training is $79.00 for each district official. 
 
Information on the FASD course can be found at https://www.fasd.com/ethics-for-
special-districts.  

Page 25



 Pal Mar Water Control District

 Budget vs. Actual
 October 2023 through February 2024

Oct '23 - Feb 24 23/24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

363.100  O & M Assessments 157,599.15 195,638.00 -38,038.85 80.56%

363.830  Assessment Fees -3,250.39 -3,913.00 662.61 83.07%

363.831  Assessment Discounts -6,066.36 -7,826.00 1,759.64 77.52%

369.401  Interest Income 36,903.85 480.00 36,423.85 7,688.3%

369.403  Carryover from Previous Year 0.00 155,696.00 -155,696.00 0.0%

Total Income 185,186.25 340,075.00 -154,888.75 54.46%

Gross Profit 185,186.25 340,075.00 -154,888.75 54.46%

Expense

511.310  Engineering 15,004.95 28,000.00 -12,995.05 53.59%

511.311  Management Fees 15,000.00 36,000.00 -21,000.00 41.67%

511.315  Legal Fees 20,779.50 60,000.00 -39,220.50 34.63%

511.318  Assessment/Tax Roll 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

511.320  Audit Fees 0.00 4,100.00 -4,100.00 0.0%

511.450  Insurance 6,763.00 8,300.00 -1,537.00 81.48%

511.480  Legal Advertisements 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%

511.512  Miscellaneous 1,105.91 7,500.00 -6,394.09 14.75%

511.513  Postage and Delivery 52.10 2,000.00 -1,947.90 2.61%

511.514  Office Supplies 504.95 2,000.00 -1,495.05 25.25%

511.515  Website Management Fee 625.00 1,500.00 -875.00 41.67%

511.540  Dues, License & Subscriptions 175.00 175.00 0.00 100.0%

512.464  Mowing 0.00 100,000.00 -100,000.00 0.0%

512.467  Miscellaneous Maintenance 13,122.97 20,000.00 -6,877.03 65.62%

512.468  Contingency-Legal Extraordinary 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%

512.469  Security 0.00 60,000.00 -60,000.00 0.0%

Total Expense 73,133.38 340,075.00 -266,941.62 21.51%

Net Ordinary Income 112,052.87 0.00 112,052.87 100.0%

Net Income 112,052.87 0.00 112,052.87 100.0%

Bank Balance As Of 2/29/24 2,076,907.93$   

Investment Acct Balance As Of 2/29/24 45,052.65$        

Accounts Payable As Of 2/29/24 12,842.61$        

Accounts Receivable As Of 2/29/24 3,000.00$          

Total Fund Balance As Of 2/29/24 2,112,117.97$   

Page 26



 1:17 PM
 03/27/24
 Accrual Basis

 Pal Mar Water Control District

 Custom Transaction Detail Report
 February 22 through March 27, 2024

Type Date Num Name Memo Debit Credit

Engineer Fees

Higgins Engineering, Inc.

Bill Pmt -Check 03/01/2024 1944 Higgins Engineering, Inc. Inv # 2488 Engineer Services 01.16.24-02.15.24 1,884.55

Total Higgins Engineering, Inc. 1,884.55 0.00

Legal Fees

Torcivia, Donlon, Goddeau & Rubin, P.A.

Bill 02/29/2024 22008 Torcivia, Donlon, Goddeau & Rubin, P.A. Inv# 22008 Professional Services Feb 2024 4,200.00

Bill Pmt -Check 03/01/2024 1947 Torcivia, Donlon, Goddeau & Rubin, P.A. Inv#21910 Professional Services Jan 2024 4,170.00

Total Torcivia, Donlon, Goddeau & Rubin, P.A. 4,170.00 4,200.00

Management Fees

Special District Services, Inc.

Bill 02/29/2024 2024-0174 Special District Services, Inc. Management Fees Feb 2024 3,375.09

Bill Pmt -Check 03/01/2024 1945 Special District Services, Inc. Management Fees Feb 2024 3,375.09

Total Special District Services, Inc. 3,375.09 3,375.09

Misc

T.J Mansell Land Management, LLC

Bill 02/29/2024 210906 T.J Mansell Land Management, LLC Inv# 210906 Supervision of Field Maint Feb 2024 3,412.97

Bill Pmt -Check 03/01/2024 1946 T.J Mansell Land Management, LLC Inv# 210906 Supervision of Field Maint Feb 2024 3,412.97

Total T.J Mansell Land Management, LLC 3,412.97 3,412.97

TOTAL 12,842.61 10,988.06

 Page 1 of 1

Page 27


	Pal Mar Water Control District - April 4, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	March 7, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Discussion on Adopting New Policies and Procedures for the Pal-Mar WCD
	Discussion Regarding District Maps for District Website
	Discussion Regarding Required Ethics Training
	Financial Report
	Consider Invoices




